CITY OF LONDON POLICE AUTHORITY BOARD Wednesday, 24 May 2023

Minutes of the meeting of the City of London Police Authority Board held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 24 May 2023 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:

Deputy James Thomson (Chair) Tijs Broeke (Deputy Chair) Alderman Professor Emma Edhem Helen Fentimen Alderman Timothy Hailes Deputy Graham Packham Deborah Oliver Dawn Wright Melissa Collett (External Member) Michael Mitchell (External Member)

In attendance:

Natasha Lloyd-Owen

In attendance virtually: Andrew Lentin

Officers:

Ian Thomas Bob Roberts Richard Holt Tanna Chandi Richard Riley Racheal Waldron Caroline AI-Beyerty Alistair Cook

Frank Marchione

City of London Police:

Angela Mclaren

Paul Betts

Nik Adams Alix Newbold Christopher Bell

- Town Clerk and Chief Executive
- Deputy Town Clerk
- Town Clerk's Department
- Town Clerk's Department
- Police Authority Director
- Police Authority
- The Chamberlain
- Chief Financial Officer City of London Police and Police Authority Treasurer
- Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department
- Commissioner of the City of London Police
- Assistant Commissioner, City of London Police
- Commander, City of London Police
- City of London Police
- City of London Police

Hayley Williams William Duffy Kate MacLeod - City of London Police

- City of London Police

- City of London Police

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Sir Craig Mackey and Andrew Lentin.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations made.

3. MINUTES

The Board considered the public minutes and non-public summary of the previous meeting of the Police Authority Board held on the 2nd of May 2023.

RESOLVED– That the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting of the Police Authority Board held on 2nd of May were approved as an accurate record.

4. STRATEGIC PLANNING & PERFORMANCE (POLICE) COMMITTEE DRAFT MINUTES

The Board received the draft minutes of the Strategic Planning and Performance Committee meeting held on the 3rd of May 2023.

RESOLVED- That the draft minutes be noted.

5. **OUTSTANDING REFERENCES**

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which set out Outstanding References from previous meetings of the Committee.

The Board were informed that the Police Authority Board's Handbook would be finalised before the next meeting of the Board and there would be update on the CCTV coverage in the Barbican estate provided at the next meeting of the Board.

Officers updated the Board on the preparations being made by the Corporation and the Force on the Terrorism (Protection of premises) draft bill and confirmed that a full update would be provided to the Board later in the year. Replying to a Member's query it Officers confirmed that impression was that the preparations were in a good place.

The Board were also updated on the Independent Advisory and Scrutiny Group noting that the prospective new membership was currently going through the appropriate vetting procedures.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

6. CHAIR'S PUBLIC UPDATE

The Board received the Chair's public update.

The Chair highlighted to the Board that with reference to the provisional revenue outturn report for 22-23 received at the Resource Risk and Estates Committee the underspend in the budget was due to a one time windfall payment of rate rebate with potential uses of the four and a half million surplus to be assessed further by the Resource, Risk and Estates Committee.

In addition, the Chair informed the Board that the suicide prevention working group had met to discuss a Corporation wide approach to suicide prevention with Officers adding that a request for further resources for the suicide prevention work would be considered by the Policy and Resources Committee. Following a query from a Member the work of the Safer City Partnership regarding suicide prevention was outlined noting the establishment of specific working groups to focus specifically on certain policy areas.

RESOLVED- That the update be noted.

7. COMMISSIONER'S UPDATE

The Board received the Commissioner's update.

The Board were updated on City of London Police's support of the policing of the King's Coronation confirming that there were no arrests made by City of London Police officers and no formal complaints received regarding their conduct. In addition, the launch of the national fraud strategy was outlined to the Board and the economic crime Member Briefing Session on the 28th of June was confirmed. A Member in attendance questioned the advice provided by City of London Police Officers at the Coronation and requested further information on the training Officers receive on the relevant public order legislation. The Deputy Chair expressed caution on the perspective the social media can provide noting that these are often partial and incomplete representations. Officers commented that City of London and Metropolitan Police had worked well on Operation Orb with months of detailed planning in advance of the operation but that a full debrief would be completed by the Metropolitan Police which would include any lessons learnt being incorporated into training as appropriate. In addition, it was confirmed that, whilst all details of the debrief may not be disclosable, the key lessons learnt would be shared with the Board.

The Deputy Chair updated the Board on his attendance at the Wilton Park summit Economic Crime Conference noting that the central element was that the new Fraud Strategy would not be enough to effectively combat fraud and economic crime without effective partnership working and increased funding with appropriate prioritisation by Police and Crime Commissioners.

The Board discussed the need for the Corporation to develop a policy on the issue of money laundering in the City of London to ensure effective partnership working on this important matter. It was noted Government had highlighted amount of illegal money in the United Kingdom as a security risk and that there

should be no perspective of conflict between the economic prosperity and enforcement. It was confirmed that the Chair of the Policy and Resources Committee was alive to these concerns and would be looking to address them appropriately.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

8. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE POLICE AUTHORITY BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board considered a number of appointments to the Police Authority Board Committees.

The Chair suggested that, further to the amended Standing Order 27(4), the coopted appointments be made for a period of two years further to which the Board approved this suggestion.

a. Appointment of the Professional Standards and Integrity Committee's Deputy Chair

The Board considered the appointment of a Deputy Chair for the Professional Standards and Integrity Committee.

There was one expression of interest from Alderman Professor Emma Edhem who was accordingly appointed.

RESOLVED- That Alderman Professor Emma Edhem be appointed as the Deputy Chair of the Professional Standards and Integrity Committee for the year ensuing.

b. Up to Two Co-Opted appointments to be made from the Membership of the Court of Common Council to the Professional Standards and Integrity Committee

The Board considered the appointment of two co-opted Members from the membership of the Court of Common Council to the Professional Standards and Integrity Committee.

One expression of interest was received from Jason Groves who was accordingly appointed. The Board also agreed to appoint Florence Keelson-Anfu subject to her willingness to serve.

RESOLVED- That Jason Goves and Florence Keelson-Anfu, subject to her willingness to serve, be appointed as co-opted members on the Professional Standards and Integrity Committee for a period of two years.

c. Up to Two Co-Opted appointments to be made from the Membership of the Court of Common Council to the Economic and Cyber Crime Committee

The Board considered the appointment of two co-opted Members from the membership of the Court of Common Council.

Four expressions of interest were received from Alpa Raja, Naresh Sonpar, Deputy Madush Gupta and Jason Goves and, therefore, the Board completed an indicative vote on these appointments. Following the result of this indicative ballot the Chair recommended the appointment of Jason Groves, Naresh Sonpar and Deputy Madush Gupta. The Board approved these appointments.

RESOLVED- That Jason Groves, Naresh Sonpar and Deputy Madush Gupta be appointed as co-opted members to the Economic and Cyber Crime Committee for a period of two year.

d. Up to Two Co-Opted appointments to be made from the Membership of the Court of Common Council to the Strategic Planning and Performance Committee

The Board considered the appointment of two co-opted Members from the membership of the Court of Common Council Strategic Planning and Performance Committee.

Two expressions of interests were received from Paul Singh and John Griffiths who were accordingly appointed.

RESOLVED- That Paul Singh and John Griffiths be appointed as co-opted members to the Strategic Planning and Performance Committee for a period of two years.

e. Up to Two Co-Opted appointments to be made from the Membership of the Court of Common Council to the Resource, Risk and Estates Committee

The Board considered the appointment of two co-opted Members from the membership of the Court of Common Council to the Resource Risk and Estates Committee.

One expression of interests was received from Paul Singh who was accordingly appointed.

RESOLVED- That Paul Singh be appointed as a co-opted member to the Resource, Risk and Estates Committee for a period of two years.

9. MEMBER GOVERNANCE ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING (ERP) DELIVERY

The Board considered a report of the Chamberlain on the Member Governance Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Delivery.

The Board agreed that Dawn Wright and Alderman Timothy Hailes be appointed as the Police Authority Board's representative ERP Member Steering Group.

RESOLVED- That: -

- I. The Board be endorsed the Digital Services Committee as the lead committee for the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) solution; and
- II. That the Board endorsed the continuation of the ERP Member Steering Group, comprising of members from each Committee/Board for strategic oversight of the responsibilities undertaken by the ERP Project Board.

10. VISION ZERO PLAN 2023 - 2028

The Board considered a report of the Executive Director Environment on the Vision Zero Plan 2023-2028.

The Board questioned whether the aim to eliminate all transport related deaths and serious injuries from the streets of the Square Mile by 2040 was a realistic target and commented that there was not enough detail in the Plan on escooters. In addition, the Board expressed concern that the Plan placed an increased enforcement burden on the Force without the required allocation of further resources.

Following the Board's discussion on the importance of education on traffic regulation the Chair requested that Officers complete the review of relevant bylaws and how they were enforced in practice.

Officers explained the partnership approach to managing traffic enforcement, noting that enforcement is, somewhat, a question of resource with education and the design of the road network as contributing factors.

Responding to the Board concerns regarding the use of suggested speed limits the advisory approach to speed limits was explained noting education was seen as important as enforcement with some of these steps committed listed in the report.

The Board agreed that it was not content to approve the report as presented and that consideration of the recommendations should be deferred until an updated report, addressing the concerns raised by Members, could be brought to a future meeting of the Board. The Chair suggested that an informal joint meeting of the Police Authority Board and Planning and Transportation Committee to discuss the Zero Vision Plan 2023-2028 be arranged.

RESOLVED- That the report be deferred.

11. QUARTERLY COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT UPDATE

The Board received a joint report of the Commissioner of Executive Director Children and Community Services on the Quarterly Community Engagement Update. The Chair observed that the engagement needs to be appropriately forward looking and strategic.

The Board commented that further structure on the cluster sector meetings with sector officers and continuity of officers would be useful to maximise the effectiveness of these meetings. Officers confirmed that considerations as part of professionalising the role of Dedicated Ward Officers was being given to giving these posts a specific tenure of post which would improve the consistency aspect to improve community engagement.

It was noted that the role of the Safer City Partnership was important to combine the key strands of work on engagement.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

12. HMICFRS PEEL INSPECTION 2022

The Board received a report of the Commissioner on the HMICFRS PEEL Inspection 2022.

The Chair observed that the areas identified as needing improvement had a clear plan for each noting that the report represents the minimum of what the Force are aiming to achieve.

The Deputy Chair noted that this was discussed in detail at the Strategic Planning and Performance Committee and stated that it was hard for the Board to accept the respective target classifications for the thematic review points of Strategic planning, organisational management and value for money Preventing crime and anti-social behaviour. He added that the engagement between the Force and the Corporation's safer city was not where it needed to be. Officers confirmed that this was a living document which would continue to be reviewed and actions reported back to the Board with the need to strengthen partnership working being a key matter for consideration.

In response to a Member's query it was confirmed that the strengthening of planning and core services was seen as the most effective approach to improving the performance of the Force as a whole, including the prevention of crime.

Officers also added that for Member reassurance, Anti-Social Behaviour was broadly on a downward trend and the Inspection had focused on specific elements.

A Member requested that details of specific requests from Members relating to the HMICFRS PEEL inspection be included in full in the minutes.

The Chair confirmed that the report would be reviewed quarterly by the Strategic Planning and Performance Committee.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

13. VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS UPDATE

The Board received a report of the Commissioner which provided the update on Violence Against Women and Girls.

The Chair commended Officers for the good work completed in this area.

Following a Member's query it was confirmed that a further forward looking report would be reviewing performance.

RESOLVED– That the report be noted.

14. CITY OF LONDON POLICE RISK REGISTER

The Board received a report of the Commissioner on the City of London Police Risk Register.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

15. QUARTERLY EQUALITY AND INCLUSION UPDATE

The Board received a report of the Commissioner on the Quarterly Equality and Inclusion Update.

Officers introduced the report explaining the key actions taken and confirming that a further report would be presented to the Board in July. The Chair commented that he was pleased to see what this activity is achieving and that the consideration of how best to measure this would also need to be completed. It was noted that the City of London Police were in the process of refreshing the Equality and Inclusion Strategy and it was confirmed that a Member Session on equality and inclusion would be arranged.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

- 16. **QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD** There were no questions.
- 17. **ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT** There were no items of urgent business.

18. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item No.	Paragraph(s) in Schedule 12A
19-30	3
23	7

19. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

The Board considered the non-public minutes of the previous meeting of the Police Authority Board held on the 2nd of May 2023.

RESOLVED– That the non-public minutes of the meeting of the Police Authority Board held on 2nd of May were approved as an accurate record.

20. NON-PUBLIC OUTSTANDING REFERENCES

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which set out non-public Outstanding References from previous meetings of the Committee.

RESOLVED – That the Committee note the report.

21. CHAIR'S NON-PUBLIC UPDATE

There was no further update from the Chair provided in the non-public session.

22. COMMISSIONER'S UPDATES

There was no further update from the Commissioner provided in the non-public session.

23. FRAUD AND CYBER CRIME REPORTING AND ANALYSIS SERVICE -PROGRAMME PROGRESS AND BUDGET SETTING REPORT

The Board considered a report of the Commissioner on Fraud and Cyber Crime Reporting and Analysis Service Programme progress and Budget setting.

RESOLVED- That the report be approved.

24. FRAUD AND CYBER CRIME REPORTING AND ANALYSIS SERVICE PROGRAMME - INFRASTRUCTURE AND PROJECTS AUTHORITY INDEPENDENT GATEWAY 3 OUTCOME REPORT

The Board received a report of the Commissioner on the Fraud and Cyber Crime Reporting and Analysis Service Programme Infrastructure and Projects Authority Independent Gateway 3 Outcome Report.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

25. HMICFRS INSPECTIONS UPDATE- VETTING, MISCONDUCT, AND MISOGYNY IN THE POLICE AND COLP COUNTER CORRUPTION AND VETTING INSPECTION

The Board received a report of the Commissioner on the HMICFRS Inspections Update Vetting, misconduct, and misogyny in the police and CoLP Counter Corruption and Vetting Inspection.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

26. NON-PUBLIC APPENDICES

The Board received the non-public appendices for Item 14.

RESOLVED- That the appendices be noted.

27. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN

The Board received a report of the Town Clerk on action taken outside of meetings of the Board.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

28. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

There were no questions.

29. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items of urgent business.

30. CORPORATE SERVICES REVIEW

The Board received a report of the Commissioner on the Corporate Services Review.

RESOLVED- That the report be noted.

The meeting ended at 1.13 pm

Chair

Contact Officer: Richard Holt Richard.Holt@cityoflondon.gov.uk